Public Document Pack

Audit and Governance Committee
Date:

Wednesday, 20 May 2020

Time:

10.00 am

Venue: Please note that, due to the
current coronavirus pandemic the
Council has reviewed its approach to
holding committee meetings.

This meeting will be held remotely in a Microsoft
Teams Live Event (see link below)

Membership: (Quorum 3)
Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman), Simon Christopher,
Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley, Nocturin Lacey-Clarke, Mike Parkes, Bill Pipe
and Bill Trite

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, South Walks House, South Walks Road,
Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1UZ (Sat Nav DT1 1EE)
For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services on
Fiona King or 01305 224186 - fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free
public app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once
downloaded select Dorset Council.
Due to the current coronavirus pandemic the Council has reviewed its approach to holding
committee meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting and listen
to the debate online by using the following link:Weblink to Audit & Governance Committee - 20 May 2020
Members of the public wishing to view the meeting from an iphone, ipad or android
phone will need to download the free Microsoft Team App to sign in as a Guest, it is
advised to do this at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting.
Please note that public speaking has been suspended. However Public Participation will
continue by written submission only. Please see detail set out below.
Dorset Council is committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its
business whenever possible. A recording of the meeting will be available on the council’s
website after the event.

Using social media at virtual meetings
Anyone can use social media such as tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it
is open to the public.

AGENDA
Page No.
1

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

MINUTES

5 - 10

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 16 January 2020.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest.

4

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee
from town and parish councils and members of the public.
Please note that public speaking has been suspended during the
Covid-19 crisis. Each question or statement is limited to no more than
450 words and must be electronically submitted to
fiona.king@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the deadline set out below.
The question or statement will be read out by an officer of the Council
and
a response will be given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder at the
meeting. All questions/statements and the responses will be published
in full within the minutes of the meeting.
The deadline for submission of the full text of a question or
statement is 8.30am on Monday 18 May 2020.

5

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

11 - 38

To consider a report from the Service Manager for Assurance.
6

RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE
To consider a report from the Service Manager for Assurance.

7

URGENT ITEMS

39 - 56

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b)
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall
be recorded in the minutes.

Agenda Item 2

DORSET COUNCIL - AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY 16 JANUARY 2020
Present: Cllrs Matthew Hall (Chairman), Richard Biggs (Vice-Chairman),
Simon Christopher, Susan Cocking, David Gray, Brian Heatley, Nocturin LaceyClarke, Mike Parkes and Bill Trite
Apologies: Cllrs Bill Pipe
Also present: Ian Howse
Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):
Aidan Dunn (Executive Director - Corporate Development S151), Richard Ironside
(Service Manager for (Finance) Policy and Compliance), Jonathan Mair
(Corporate Director - Legal & Democratic Service Monitoring Officer), Jim
McManus (Corporate Director - Finance and Commercial), John Sellgren
(Executive Director, Place), David Wilkes (Service Manager for Treasury and
Investments) and Fiona King (Democratic Services Officer)
58.

Apologies
An apology for absence was received from Bill Pipe.

59.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2019 were confirmed and
signed.
Minute 56 – Audit & Governance Forward Plan
Following a question about whether information regarding a change to
Constitution had been circulated, the Corporate Director for Legal and
Democratic Services confirmed that it had but undertook to resend it.

60.

Declarations of Interest
No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made at the meeting.

61.

Public Participation
There were no representations from parish or town councils or from members
of the public.

62.

Dorset Council EU Exit Preparations
The committee received a presentation from the Executive Director of Place,
which set out the preparations being undertaken by Dorset Council in respect

Page 5

of EU Exit. The update covered the work that had been undertaken by the
council and noted that an extension for EU Exit had been granted until 31
January 2020.
It was reported that:





Yellowhammer had now been stood down by the Government and thanks
had been received for all the councils’ efforts. It was noted that the
merging of the council’s had assisted with the Brexit challenge by bring
things together in terms of planning for emergencies. Time had been well
spent that would have had to be done under any scenario.
There were now a number of things the Government was asking councils
to do. Reference was made to the Strategic Officer group, which consisted
of officers at Director level drawn from across the organisation.
The
Group met on a weekly basis and the importance of having good channels
of communication for what was an emerging situation was highlighted.
Focus was on the on the EU Settlement Scheme – the Government were
aware that a lot of people had not registered for this yet. A number of EU
nationals were on the payroll and it was important to ensure the relevant
staff had the appropriate advice. There was an Advisor at the Chamber of
Commerce in place to provide information to businesses as it was
suspected that a lot of businesses would be looking for advice. Officers
also had a close link with Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council. It
would be difficult to predict the information businesses would need until
after 1 February 2020. It was highlighted that a lot of the communication
regarding businesses was being led by a Government programme and not
directly by the Chamber of Commerce or the LEP.

Following a question about what the council was doing to mitigate the risk of
losing a number of EU Nationals on the payroll, the Executive Director for
Place advised that because of the legislative position officer could only
provide guidance and not advice, that was the role of government advisors.
Councils had been asked to raise awareness within their communities. There
were advisors in the Citizens Advice Bureaux which could assist people.
However, officers were being vigilant about the number s of EU national staff
that were currently working for the Council. In respect of staff that looked after
vulnerable children the Government had made it clear there would be
additional funding for this. In respect of those staff that looked after
vulnerable adults, the Government were also concerned with this, the Director
of People - Adults had been involved in this regard through the Strategic
Group and helpful guidance from the Government had been issued. The
Corporate Director for Legal and Democratic Services added that the aim was
to encourage people to register to ensure there wasn’t a shortfall in the
workforce and to get some direct communications in place using the open
Electoral Register for people that were registered to vote. The aim was to also
get some direct communications in place using the Open electoral register for
people that were registered to vote.
Following a discussion regarding shipping and there was still a potential risk,
the Executive Director for Place advised that if Poole was one of the ports
2

Page 6

designated with additional capacity there was now a contingency plan in
place.
The Vice-Chairman felt it would be helpful for members to receive a written
report setting out a retrospective view on how the risks had been managed
along with any lessons learned. The Executive Director - Place confirmed
that the issues were logged on the Corporate Risk Register. With regards to
Internal Audit, the Corporate Director – Legal and Democratic Services
advised that this was not in the Internal Audit workplan. However, there was
report being presented to the Senior Leadership Team shortly about the Brexit
programme which would come to the Audit and Governance Committee at a
later date.
One member expressed concern regarding farming and felt this area
specifically would be affected quite drastically. There was already evidence of
labour market problems. One of the main concerns was for large farmers and
how they would cope with this. He suggested engaging with Kingston
Maurward College to encourage young people into the farming industry.
In response to a query about the UK shared prosperity fund, which would
replace EU money, the Executive Director – Place advised that the LEP was
keen for this money to be channelled through them whilst the Local
Government Association wanted to see the monies go through local councils.
This was still very much a watch this space scenario. With regards to
procurement and whether there would be any prospect of simplifying the
process councils had to go through for purchasing, the Executive Director
advised he was hopeful that the Government would seek to remove some of
the red tape.
Decision
That members receive a report which included a retrospective view of the
processes along with any lessons learned.
63.

External Audit Plan
Members considered the planning report for the year ending 31 March 2020
from Deloitte.
Ian Howse from Deloitte presented the report highlighting the significant audit
risks to members.
The Executive Director – Corporate Development advised the committee that
the 2018/19 Accounts for Weymouth and Portland Borough Council, West
Dorset District Council and North Dorset District Council had now been signed
off by the Chairman and himself. The delay had been due to the complexity
of the transition into the new Council, combined with the new External Auditor
needing time to get up to speed. However, his team were already preparing
for this year’s accounts.
One member expressed concern regarding Risk 6 – Value for Money and felt
it looked as if there had been very little progress made. He felt this could
3

Page 7

potentially be a reputational big risk and asked how members could gauge
improvement. Mr Howse, Deloitte advised that his job was to look across the
whole year with the aim to bring back areas where progress has been made
and where there are still areas of concern. His experience suggested this was
more of a long-term project.
The Chairman advised that he had spoken with SWAP officers earlier to ask
them to attend future committee meetings in order to give more assistance to
members. He thought it might also be helpful for a representative from
Deloitte to attend meetings quarterly. Mr Howse advised that there plans in
place for an interim report in March following the interim audit. He was happy
to attend as and when members wished but was unlikely to produce a draft
report for July due to time constraints. The Chairman welcomed those and felt
whilst members still had concerns about finances, this would go some way to
address this.
In response to a request for reassurance in terms of value for money in areas
of expenditure in respect of Children’s Services relating to one individual, Mr
Howse advised that the work that auditors did on value for money only looked
at high level arrangements that the council had in place. The way the system
worked at the moment they would not be looking at benchmarking at that
level. The focus was on the numbers that were in the accounts which didn’t go
into that level of detail. Cllr Christopher asked for a letter to be sent to the
Chairman from Deloitte confirming these arrangements.
The Corporate Director – Legal and Democratic Services advised members of
the potential next steps with regards to Risk 6 in that the value for money
conclusion element of the opinion on the accounts would be qualified. If
there was a significant risk be questioned whether it would be for the auditors
to follow through or would it be for the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to
take forward as there was mention of this in their terms of reference. The
Vice-Chairman felt members needed to be assured that they had the right
methods in place and felt it was for the Scrutiny Committees to take forward
and for the Audit Committee to then review.
One member felt it would be appropriate for the People Scrutiny Committee to
look at the Blueprint for Change programme and for Audit to then see how the
project had gone and if there had been any lessons learned.
In respect of the Deloitte approach to materiality the Chairman asked where
the 1.7% had come from. Mr Howse advised that the range was usually
between one and two per cent, it was purely a judgement factor and would be
reassessed throughout the audit.
Decisions
1. That Deloitte write to the Chairman confirming the level of detail in the
accounts regarding the Value for Money risk.
2. That Overview and Scrutiny Committees take forward the detail on the
Value for Money risk.
3. That a report on the Blueprint for Change Programme be added to the
Forward Plan.

4

Page 8

4. The Clerk to send meeting dates to Deloitte for them to establish when they
will report back to members.
64.

External Audit Work and Fees 2016/17 and 2017/19 KPMG Weymouth
& Portland Borough Council
Members considered a report from the Executive Director Corporate
Development which had been prepared as a result of an objection to the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017 relating to Lender Option
Borrower Option (LOBO) loans taken out by Weymouth and Portland Borough
Council.
The summary of the matter produced by KPMG had been attached as an
appendix to the Director’s report.
Following a comment from a member regarding looking at current LOBOs and
the processes around them, the Corporate Director – Finance and
Commercial agreed that as part of the Treasury Management Strategy
officers would continue to look at LOBOs as part of a fuller piece of work for
2020/2021.
In response to a question about a timeframe for people to complain and when
it could be deemed to be not worth exploring, Mr Howse advised that there
was a fixed period of time in which members of the public could challenge –
28 days. Once the audit was closed off and signed with certificates issued it
then closed any objections. The Executive Director – Corporate Development
confirmed that all the other accounts for that particular council were now
signed off.
One member expressed surprise and concern that one elector could raise a
complaint about accounts and cause a Council to spend in excess of £16k.
Mr Howse noted that the auditor needed to assess the question raised and
charge accordingly for the process.
Following a discussion about whether the objection was genuine rather than
vexatious or flippant, one member asked if the objector was entitled to
anonymity as he felt members of the public had a right to know who the
objector was and the cost of such matters. Mr Howse advised there was an
opportunity for the Auditor to determine if it was a vexatious objection. The
Corporate Director – Legal and Democratic Services was unsure as to
whether it would serve any purpose to identify the objector.
Noted

65.

Audit and Governance Work Programme
The committee’s forward plan was reviewed and the following points noted:


A look at the process for the Blueprint for Change programme – date to
be agreed.

5

Page 9






A brief report on how the council organises its filing and how IT
systems relate to this – date to be agreed within the next 3 months.
In respect of the recent budget setting process, the Chairman felt Audit
members should perhaps have been included.
He asked that
members look at how the figures were obtained and the methodology
used in order to be assured. The Executive Director – Corporate
Development advised that SWAP were already on board and would
report back to members on this. Date to be agreed.
The Executive Director undertook to liaise with SWAP to see if a
workshop would be useful as a means to report on the processes used.

Following attendance at a recent LGA/CIPFA training event the Chairman and
lead officers to meet to discuss the Committee’s Terms of Reference.
The Executive Director – Corporate Development undertook to explore future
training opportunities for members of the Committee.
The Chairman reminded members about the Treasury Management training
scheduled for Thursday 23 January 2020.
66.

Urgent items
There were no urgent items of business.

Duration of meeting: 10.00 - 11.35 am
Chairman

6

Page 10

Agenda Item 5

Audit and Governance Committee
May 2020
Draft Annual Governance Statement 2019-20
For Decision
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr S Flower, Leader of the Council

Executive Director:

Jonathan Mair, Corporate Director, Legal & Democratic

Name: Marc Eyre, Service Manager Assurance; Tel: 01305 224358
Email : m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk

Report Status: Public
Recommendation: The Committee is asked to consider and comment on the draft
AGS for 2019-20.
Reason for Recommendation: Approval and publication of an AGS by the Council is
a statutory requirement and provides evidence that Dorset Council maintains high
standards of governance and addresses significant shortcomings and risks.
1.

Executive Summary

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 require a body such as the
Council to “approve an annual governance statement, prepared in accordance with
proper practices in relation to internal control.”
The attached draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2019-20 sets out key
features of the governance framework in place in the Authority and provides a review
of its effectiveness. It has been prepared in line with the recommendations published
by CIPFA and SOLACE, which were revised in 2016. It should be noted that the Local
Code of Corporate Governance and schedule of High risks are included as
Appendices to the Annual Governance Statement. The “Review of Effectiveness”
within the draft AGS is informed by the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance
Compliance Assessment 2019-20 (Appendix A). The AGS also discusses those risks
that are contained in the Councils Corporate Risk Register which are classified as
‘high’ and, as such, represent potential significant governance issues that the Council
is currently facing and actively seeking to address (This will be included within the final
document and will follow the format used within the appendices for the Risk
Management report elsewhere on this agenda).

Page 11

Under the 2015 regulations, the accounts are not approved by the Council (or the
Committee to which the responsibility is delegated) until after the external audit has
been carried out. At this stage this draft allows members an early view and an ability
to inform the content. Final adoption of the AGS will take place, alongside the
accounts, by the Council and any areas of improvement will be identified.
The final statement will be signed by the Council Leader and Chief Executive. As the
AGS must reflect any significant issues that arise prior to its final approval, if
necessary, subsequent amendments will be made to the draft document to reflect
them and reported to this Committee.
2.

Financial Implications

There are no budget requirements arising directly from this report. The overall financial
position of the Council is one of the significant issues covered in the AGS. Addressing
other issues identified in the compliance assessment or the AGS may have budgetary
implications, which will be considered in the relevant action plans.
3.

Climate implications

There are no climate requirements arising directly from this report.
4.

Other Implications

The “Review of Effectiveness” within the draft AGS explains the significant governance
issues facing the Council.
5.

Risk Assessment

The AGS references risks on the Council’s corporate risk register which have been
assessed as being HIGH.
6.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Considering equalities issues is a key aspect of good governance, but there are no
equalities issues arising directly from this report.
7.

Appendices

Appendix A: Draft AGS 2019-20
8.

Background Papers

Evidence to inform the governance compliance assessment and then to complete the
Annual Governance Statement has been provided by senior officers across the
organisation. It includes policies and procedures of the Council, the Constitution, and
reports and minutes of Committees - CIPFA / SOLACE publication: Delivering good
governance in local government – framework.

Page 12

Annual Governance
Statement
2019-2020

Page 13

1

Contents
Ref
1

Description
Introduction and Acknowledgement of Responsibility

Page
3

2

The Principles of Good Governance

3

3

Key Elements of the Council’s Governance Framework

3

4

Overview of the Councils Governance framework

4

5

Leadership

4

6

Our Behaviours

5

7

Review of Effectiveness

8

8

Assurance Statement

9

9

How can we IMPROVE?

10

10

Approval of the Annual Governance Statement 2020-21

10

Page 14

2

1.

Introduction and Acknowledgement of Responsibility
Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that public money is
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and
effectively. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the Council to conduct
a review, at least once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and
include an Annual Governance Statement reporting on the review with the Statement
of Accounts.

2.

The Principles of Good Governance
The CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance publication (2016) defines the various
principles of good governance in the public sector. The document sets out seven core
principles that underpin the governance framework and these are set out opposite.

3.

Key Elements of the Council’s Governance Framework
Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has
a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to decide to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions. The Governance Framework is comprised of the systems and
processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is directed, and its activities
through which it is accountable to, engages with and leads the community. The system
of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims
and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness.
The process of review and monitoring of governance arrangements across Dorset
Council is an ongoing process with updates provided throughout the year to
stakeholders. The outputs from this process have also been a primary source of
information for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This
Statement explains how the Council has complied with The Code and meets the
requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 regulation 6, in
relation to conducting a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
and the publication of an annual governance statement.

Page 15

3

4.

Overview of Dorset Councils Governance framework

Council, Cabinet and Leader
Decision making
Provide leadership, approve the budget, All decisions made in compliance with law and
develop and set policy
council constitution
Approve the constitution which sets out how All committee meetings are held in public, other
the council operates
than for exempt business
Agree Council Plan priorities, developed in Decisions are recorded on the council website
consultation with residents and stakeholders
Scrutiny and review
Overview & Scrutiny committees review
council policy and can challenge decisions. The
Audit & Governance Committee reviews
governance and promotes and maintains high
standards of conduct by councillors

5.

Risk Management
A risk management policy and strategy set out a
clear approach to management of risks
Risk registers identify strategic, operational and
project risks

Leadership
Senior Leadership Team - Head of Paid Service is the Chief Executive and is responsible
for all council employees and leading an effective county organisation. Executive
Director for Corporate Development is the council’s Section 151 officer and is
responsible for safeguarding the council’s financial position and ensuring value for
money. The Corporate Director (Legal & Democratic Services Monitoring Officer) who
is responsible for ensuring legality and promoting high standards of conduct in public
life. The council’s constitution is updated throughout the year and sets out how the
council operates. It states what matters are reserved for decision by the whole council,
the responsibilities of the cabinet and the matters reserved for collective and
individual decision, and the powers delegated to panels, committees and partners.
Decision making powers not reserved for councillors are delegated to chief officers
and heads of service. Elected members scrutinise decisions made by the Cabinet, and
those delegated to officers, and review services provided by the council and its
partners. The council’s overall policy is represented through the council plan, which is
developed alongside the budget through consultation with residents and other
stakeholders in the county, and which sets out how Dorset Council priorities will be
delivered.
Performance against the council plan is monitored throughout the year. The
performance development process helps to identify learning and development needs,
manage and progress goals and objectives employees which will be monitored
through monthly check-ins. Members are also offered development opportunities, in
line with their own personal development. The council has recently approved a fiveyear people strategy which sets out our ambitions to become an employer of choice,
develop and support our people to be the best they can be at work.

Page 16

4

During 2020 the Council has had a significant role in responding to the Covid-19
outbreak, as a Category One responder under the Civil Contingencies Act. This has
resulted in some temporary changes to governance arrangements, including
postponement of some Committee meetings, and prioritisation of service delivery to
cope with changing demand. The Emergency Response Plan and its supporting
Command and Control structure has responded well.

6.

Our behaviours
There are four behaviours we expect every employee to demonstrate, regardless of
who they are and what they do for the council. In how we work and communicate,
whether internally or externally, we should be leading by example to encourage and
inspire each other through these behaviours. By embodying these behaviours, we can
work collaboratively together as One Team. The examples given against each
behaviour describe the type of things that individuals might demonstrate. This
framework has been designed to aid discussions across Dorset Council, to help us work
towards a positive workplace culture.
Responsibility We act with integrity. We are honest and we don't attribute blame
when something goes wrong. We are all part of the solution.
When responsibility is being demonstrated We…
 give constructive feedback and seek out feedback on our own performance
and behaviours
 deliver what we promise
 are open and transparent
 learn from mistakes
 take ownership
 standby and support difficult decisions

Page 17

5

When responsibility is not being demonstrated We…
 blame others
 defer decision making without a good reason
 don't respect other people's work or deadlines
 avoid difficult conversations with colleagues, partners or customers
Respect We are aware of our impact on others. We treat people fairly and have high
expectations of ourselves and others, and value differences in approaches and
opinions. We instigate and lead through positive behaviour.
When respect is being demonstrated We…
 are welcoming and friendly
 adapt our approach to help build good working relationships
 recognise and value the differences between people, placing a positive value
on those differences
 manage our reactions professionally and calmly
 keep promises
 demonstrate empathy and recognise alternative perspectives
When respect is not being demonstrated We…
 treat people differently based on their role / position
 are insensitive or unhelpful
 exclude people
 instigate or take part in gossip
 make excuses for poor behaviour or protect others' poor behaviour
 work on other tasks during meetings, instead of being responsive and
contributing to the discussion
Recognition We appreciate and value the contribution of individuals and teams for
work well done. We lead by taking time to provide feedback and share lessons learned
and achievements to support the organisation's development. We celebrate
commitment and success.
When recognition is being demonstrated We…
 give positive feedback
 acknowledge good behaviour and respectfully challenge poor behaviour
 value every contribution in success
 create a positive team spirit
When recognition is not being demonstrated We…
 take credit for another people's work
 instigate or encourage a blame culture
 undermine or act negatively when someone receives recognition
 use recognition for self-promotion

Page 18

6

One Team: Collaboration We work with colleagues, residents and partners to achieve
the best possible outcomes. We feel confident to share ideas, we listen and respect
other points of view and set this example to each other. We value the power in
combining our personal qualities, skills and experience to achieve a shared goal.
When collaboration is being demonstrated We…
 spend time building positive relationships
 are flexible in our attitude and approach
 share information and expertise without being asked to
 invite and support others to try new possibilities
 work through conflict to create conditions for successful working
 work to find the simplest way to do things
 work together, not in competition
When collaboration is not being demonstrated We…
 don't share information or are reluctant to contribute
 don't value or respect contributions from others
 avoid working across departments or teams
 are not flexible in our attitude and approach
 take credit for another people's work
The council has a whistleblowing policy, which encourages employees and other
concerned parties to report any instances of suspected unlawful conduct, financial
malpractice, or actions that are dangerous to the public or environment. The council
expects the highest standards of conduct and personal behaviour from councillors and
employees. These standards are defined and communicated through codes of
conduct, protocols and other documents.
The council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government” (2010) as set out in the “Application Note to Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government: Framework”. The Chief Financial Officer (performed
by the Executive Director for Corporate Services) has statutory responsibility for the
proper management of the council’s finances and is a key member of the leadership
team. The council’s assurance arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA “Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit in
Public Service Organisations” (2010). When risks are identified, an agreement takes
place on how they will be managed and mitigated and keep the council’s risk profile
under review and satisfied that management’s systems include appropriate controls,
and that it has adequate sources of assurance. It is acknowledged that with such
systems in place it will not eliminate all risks, but having systems, mitigations and
controls will help to provide a robust process that considers any such risks.
The council has appropriate arrangements in place to deal with fraud and corruption
risks and is committed to maintaining its vigilance to tackle fraud. The council’s legal
services and procurement teams ensure that all are fit for purpose and the council’s
interests are protected.

Page 19

7

7.

Review of Effectiveness
The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance
with the law and proper standards and that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for, and used economically and efficiently. It must ensure it has
arrangements for the proper governance of its affairs the effective exercise of its
functions. The governance framework comprises the rules, procedures, systems and
processes by which the Council is controlled. The quality of governance arrangements
underpins the levels of trust in public services and is fundamental to the Council’s
statutory and democratic obligations.
A framework of good governance allows the Council to be clear about how it
discharges its responsibilities and to show this for members, partners, stakeholders
and residents. As mentioned above the council has responsibility for conducting, at
least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the
system of internal control. The system of internal control is a significant part of the
framework and is designed to ensure risks are managed within the council’s appetite.
We cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies and objectives and can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The effectiveness of the framework is monitored and assured through routine
performance monitoring and by internal and external audit. The key elements of the
review of effectiveness are:

Page 20

8

8.



The council’s internal management processes, such as performance monitoring
and reporting; the employees performance appraisal framework; internal surveys
of awareness of corporate policies; monitoring of policies, such as the corporate
complaints and health and safety policies; and the corporate budget challenge
process



The Local Code of Corporate Governance Self-Assessment, confirming that the
Code of Conduct, Financial Regulations and other corporate governance processes
have operated as intended within services throughout the year



Corporate, Service and Project Risk Registers which identify significant exposures
together with action plans intended to bring the level of risk down to an acceptable
level. The work of the audit and governance committee which includes
responsibility for monitoring the development and operation of corporate
governance in the council



Quarterly Audit Improvement monitoring reports, Annual Internal Audit Reports
and External Audit (ISA260), reviews by external inspection regimes (such as
Ofsted and optional peer challenges).

Assurance Statement
Having reviewed the council arrangements the work, as detailed above, provides good
overall assurance of the council’s system of internal control and that the
arrangements are fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework.

Page 21

9

9.

What actions have been taken in response to 2018-19 Annual
Governance Statement
As Dorset Council is a new unitary authority, it did not produce an Annual Governance
Statement for 2018/19, however the predecessor Councils were required to do so.
Commitments made within these were:

10.



We will continue to ensure that any significant risks identified by Dorset Council
are recognised and responded to by the Leadership Team and Elected
Councillors. RESPONSE – A new Dorset Council risk register has been developed,
including service level risks. This process is still maturing and therefore remains
an action within the 2019/20 statement.



We aim to be better at aligning our finances to the Council Plan and performance
framework. RESPONSE - A new Dorset Council Plan has been approved.

How can we IMPROVE?
Specific opportunities for improvement in governance and internal controls identified
as part of the assurance processes have been addressed or are included in action plans
for the relevant managers. Focus will be placed on the following issues during 202021 as we continue the journey following the transition into Dorset Council.

A - Behaving with
integrity, demonstrating
strong commitment to
ethical values and
respecting the rule of the
law

The mandatory e-learning module for General Data Protection Regulations
needs to be promoted and completion rates monitored. Action – Service
manager for Assurance
Work is underway to ensure that there is greater visibility and promotion of
whistleblowing arrangements. Action – Service Manager for Assurance.
The Council is establishing a policy and supporting training framework for
Corporate Criminal Offence - Action – Service Manager for (Finance) Policy and
Compliance.

F - Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control and
strong public financial
management

Improve maturity of the Dorset Council risk management arrangements,
including reporting to officers and members. Action - Service Manager for
Assurance

G - Implementing good
practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to
deliver effective
accountability

Monitoring of the Peer Review implementation plan. Action – Service
Manager for Business Intelligence and Performance

Undertake a debrief/lessons learnt process in respect of the Council’s response
to Covid-19 and build this into future emergency planning arrangements, in
conjunction with the Local Resilience Forum. Action – Service Manager for
Assurance.

Page 22

10

10.

Approval of the Annual Governance Statement 2019-20
The council is satisfied that this statement provides a substantial level of assurance
that good governance is in place in Dorset Council and that appropriate arrangements
are in place to address improvements in our review of compliance. Progress on these
improvements and on addressing any mitigating the risks will be monitored through
the year by senior officers and elected councillors of Dorset Council.

Matt Prosser
Chief Executive, Dorset Council

Councillor Spencer Flower
Leader of Dorset Council

The Annual Governance Statement was informed by:
 Appendix 1 – The Local Code of Corporate Governance
 Appendix 2 – High Corporate Risks

Page 23

11

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A
Introduction - Dorset Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards. It needs to ensure that
public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) require the
Council to conduct a review, at least once a year, on the effectiveness of its system of internal control and include an Annual Governance Statement reporting
on the review with the Statement of Accounts.
Good Governance in the Public Sector - In 2014, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) collaborated to produce The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector. The diagram (table 1) illustrates the core
principles of good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other: Principles A and B permeates implementation of principles C to G. It
illustrates that good governance is dynamic, and that an entity should be committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a process of
positive outcomes for service users and other stakeholders. The Framework sets the standard for local authority governance in the UK. The purpose of the
Framework is to assist authorities individually in reviewing and accounting for their own unique approach, with the overall aim to ensure that:
Resources are directed in accordance with agreed policy and according to priorities



There is sound and inclusive decision making



There is clear accountability for the use of those resources to achieve desired outcomes for service users and communities

1

Our Approach to Corporate Governance - In Dorset, good governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way and for
the benefit of the residents it serves. Good governance will invariably lead to high standards of management, strong performance, the effective use of resources
and good outcomes which in turn will lead to increased trust. Good governance flows from having shared values and culture. It requires having in place a
framework of overarching strategic policies and objectives underpinned by robust systems, processes and structures for delivering these. We recognise that
the delivery of our strategic policies and objectives cannot be done in isolation. We need to engage with other statutory bodies and the voluntary and
community sector as well as private companies commissioned to deliver services. As such Dorset Council has an interest in ensuring that these partners have
in place good governance arrangements.

Page

Page 25



Table 1 - Dorset Council is committed to the seven core principles of
good practice contained in the CIPFA framework and will test its
governance arrangements against this framework and report annually.
To confirm this, we test our governance arrangements by:
Developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance,
including arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness. Our Local
Code has been written to reflect the Council’s own structure, functions,
and the governance arrangements in existence. It’s comprised of the
policies, procedures, behaviours, actions and values by which the
Council is controlled and governed.

Page 26

Reviewing existing governance arrangements. The Council will monitor
its governance arrangements for their effectiveness in practice and will
review them on a continuing basis to ensure that they are up to date.
This review will include an assessment of the effectiveness of the
processes contained within the Local Code. This includes annual
assessments such as:



Departments’ and corporate reviews of assurance arrangements - Internal Audit Annual Report including an opinion on the risk, governance and control
environment and framework
The opinions of other review agencies and inspectorates, including governance issues via ad hoc cases / disciplinary issues, police investigations

assess how the Council has complied with our Local Code and provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s governance
arrangements

o

provide details of how continual improvement in the systems of governance will be achieved.

Page

o

2

Reporting publicly on compliance with our own code on an annual basis and on how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements
in the year and on planned changes. Regulation 6(1)(a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to conduct a review at least once
in a year of the effectiveness of our systems of internal control and include a statement reporting on the review with our published statement of Accounts.
his is known as the Annual Governance Statement. The Chief Executive and Leader of the Council certify the Annual Governance Statement to accompany
the Annual Accounts which will:

Dorset Council’s Local Code is based on the following principles which we are always working towards with the overall aim
of ‘Achieving the intended outcomes while acting in the public interest

Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values
Respecting the rule of
law

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Demonstrating and communicating and embedding the standard operating principles or values through
appropriate policies and processes which are reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that they are operating
effectively. Leading by example and using the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for
decision making and other actions.
Dorset Council’s Constitution contains Codes of Conduct for both Councillors and Officers to ensure that high
standards of conduct are maintained. The Constitution was reviewed in this financial year and approved by Full
Council at its meeting on 18 February 2020. This included a revision of the committee framework, separating
out overview and scrutiny functions.

Page 27

Registers of Members’ interests and records of gifts and hospitality are published on the Council’s website.
Members’ Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal Interests that might lead to bias are
recorded in minutes of meetings which are available on the Council’s website. The Members’ Register of
Interests including gifts and hospitality is made available for public inspection and published on the Council’s
website.
Dorset Council support and promotes the maintenance of high standards of conduct by Members and has
agreed criteria for assessing complaints against Members, which is published on the Council’s website.
The Employee’s (Officer’s) Code of Conduct sets out standards of behaviour and conduct that the Council
expects of its employees. This includes confidentiality, data protection (which is subject to mandatory annual
training via e-learning), freedom of information, and fraud prevention. An employee policy is in place for
acceptance of gifts and hospitality. The Monitoring Officer reviews the registers of interests and gifts and
hospitality on an annual basis.
An Information Governance Board has been established, chaired by the Senior Information Risk Officer.
Regular items appear on the Council’s intranet reminding all employees of the Register of Interests, Register of
Gifts and Hospitality and the Whistleblowing Procedure and arrangements are in place to enable employees to
raise issues of concern and report any wrongdoing.

3

Sub-principles
Behaving with integrity

Page

Principles
A.
Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values and respecting the
rule of the law

Principles

Sub-principles

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
A formal complaints policy which is publicly accessible is in place and an annual report on complaints is produced
for all areas and is published. The Council has in place an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy
and has also implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risks of bribery and corruption and moneylaundering to conform with requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice – ‘Managing the Risk of Fraud and
Corruption’ (2014) which are publicised across the organisation.
Developing and maintaining robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values.
Ensuring that external providers of service on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in
compliance with ethical standards expected by the organisation.

When procuring goods or services, the Council uses a selection questionnaire which includes questions on a
potential supplier’s ethical behaviour.
Striving to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other
stakeholders. Dealing with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively. Ensuring corruption and misuse
of power are dealt with effectively. The Council is establishing a policy and supporting training framework for
Corporate Criminal Offence - Responsible Officer – Service Manager for (Finance) Policy and Compliance.

4

The Council’s Political Structure and Roles are available on the Council’s website and includes membership details
and functions of all major committees as well as roles and responsibilities of Cabinet and other members.
Appropriate Officers monitor reports to ensure propriety of decision making and that legal advice is included
where necessary and appropriate. All members and Chief Officers are required to complete the ‘Related Party
Disclosure Form’. The Council maintains records of legal advice provided by officers to ensure it respects the rule
of law.

Page

Page 28

The Member Code of Conduct includes Principles and rules of behaviour which cover, Integrity; Selflessness;
Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Honesty and Leadership. Members, in signing the Code, agree to comply
with these principles. Employees Code of Conduct and Part 5B of the Constitution refers to the key principles in
public life and standards. The promotion of high standards of conduct is one of the key areas of responsibility for
the Audit and Governance Committee.

Principles
B.
Ensuring openness and
comprehensive
stakeholder engagement

Sub-principles
Openness
Engaging
comprehensively with
institutional stakeholders
Engaging with individual
citizens and service users
effectively

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Ensuring an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the organisation's
commitment to openness. Making decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs
and outcomes. The presumption is for openness. If that is not the case, a justification for the reasoning for keeping
a decision confidential should be provided.
Using formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective
interventions/courses of action.
Adoption of a clear and consistent reporting format in relation to committee reports. Agendas, reports (and
minutes) are also published on the council’s website in advance. Meetings are open to the public except in relation
to exempt items.
A ‘forward plan’ of items is in place and dates for submitting, publishing and distributing timely reports are set and
adhered to. Records of decisions and supporting materials are available which can be found on the Council’s
website.

The induction and member development programme were designed to ensure that members were equipped with
the relevant knowledge and skills they require to perform their role to the benefit of the council and local
communities.

5

Reports to and decisions taken by the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Bodies and Regulatory Board are available on the
Council’s website. The Council uses social media to reach a growing number of residents and stakeholders. It also
publishes a council magazine and has an active website. Freedom of Information practices are in place to publish
responses to requests. Important data is published in accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code
(2015), as are our performance reports and findings. Local Government Transparency Code 2015 is issued to meet
the Government’s desire to place more power into citizens’ hands to increase democratic accountability and make
it easier for local people to contribute to the local decision-making process and help shape public services.

Page

Page 29

Regular meetings are held with relevant Lead Members to brief them on developments in their service area and
of issues of concern. Reports showing progress against the Council Plan is published and scrutinised.

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Transparency is the foundation of local accountability and the key that gives people the tools and information they
need to enable them to play a bigger role in society. The availability of data can also open new markets for local
business, the voluntary and community sectors and social enterprises to run services or manage public assets.
Establishing a clear policy on the type of issues that the organisation will meaningfully consult with or involve
communities, individual citizens, service users and other stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision
is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes in:




Page 30




Ensuring that communication methods are effective, and that members and officers are clear about their
roles about community engagement. Encouraging, collecting and evaluating the views and experiences
of communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds, including reference to
future needs.
Implementing effective feedback mechanisms to demonstrate how views have been considered.
Balancing feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure
inclusivity.
Taking account of the impact of decisions on future generations of taxpayers and service users.
There was a significant level of engagement, consultation and preparation formulating the induction and
training plan for the elected members of Dorset Council (DC) due to the volume of information needing to
be communicated. The induction was then devised from this feedback and from conversations with a
large range of officers. Approval for the plan was sought from both officers and outgoing councillors.
Internal audit of the induction plan provided a “substantial” assurance that the council has robust
arrangements in place for the induction and training of elected Members

A variety of arrangements are in place to engage with and involve other stakeholders including the business sector,
health agencies, the Police, town & parish councils, rural communities and the voluntary and community sector.
Engaging with customers before planning and commissioning services is encouraged by the Council’s
Communications team. Regular media and web monitoring are in place to pick up informal feedback. The Council
has adopted a clear framework for residents, service users and employees about public consultations. We have in
house expertise in communication, engagement, research and survey design, equalities issues and legal issues,
provides support and guidance and co-ordinates resources to ensure robust public consultations.
Results of major consultations are published in bespoke reports, which are available HERE

6

Sub-principles

Page

Principles

Principles
C. Defining outcomes in
terms of sustainable
economic, social, and
environmental benefits

Sub-principles
Defining outcomes

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Having a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the organisation's purpose and intended outcomes
containing appropriate performance indicators, which provide the basis for the organisation's overall strategy,
planning and other decisions; Specifying the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens
and service users. Managing service users' expectations effectively about determining priorities and making the
best use of the resources available.

Sub-principles
Determining
interventions
Planning interventions
Optimising achievement
of intended outcomes

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Ensuring the medium-term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and other
resource constraints. Ensuring the budgeting process is all-inclusive, considering the full cost of operations over
the medium and longer term. Ensuring the achievement of 'social value' through service planning and
commissioning. Ensuring decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options, indicating
how intended outcomes would be achieved and associated risks. Therefore, ensuring best value is achieved
however services are provided. Establishing and implementing robust planning and control cycles that cover
strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets. Engaging with internal and external stakeholders in
determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered:
 Considering and monitoring risks facing each partner when working collaboratively, including shared risks.
Ensuring arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering goods and services
can be adapted to changing circumstances.
 Establishing appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process to identify how
the performance of services and projects is to be measured. Ensuring capacity exists to generate the
information required to review service quality regularly.
 Preparing budgets in accordance with objectives, strategies and the medium-term financial plan. Inform
medium and long-term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital
expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy.

Page

Page 31

Principles
D.
Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimise the
achievement of the
intended outcomes

7

The Council’s overall vision is reflected in the Council Plan. We also have in place the Medium-Term Financial
Strategy. The Council communicates with and takes account of feedback to review outcomes, so they reflect
progress and wider changes. A variety of engagement, consultation and communication channels are in place to
ensure that service users are aware of the financial and policy context and to help manage expectations.
Determining the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the
various economic, social and environmental benefits through consultation where possible, to ensure appropriate
trade-offs. Ensuring fair access to services. Our transformation programme includes management of our property
and assets as a key theme. The Plan provides the long - term strategy within which the Council manages and
maintains its transport network.

Principles

Sub-principles

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
A Strategic Commissioning and contracting approach is being embedded into the organisation including
commissioning strategies and a clear commissioning cycle involving service review, evidence and consultation.
Using business intelligence, the need to align our priorities and goals with future outcomes and financial targets.
Work is in progress to develop targets that are:




allocated appropriately across directorates, teams and individuals;
based on robust data analysis that takes into consideration more than just previous performance;
reviewed and monitored on a regular basis;

Sub-principles
Developing the entity’s
capacity
Developing the capability
of the entity’s leadership
and other individuals

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Reviewing operations, performance and use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness.
Recognizing the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved.
Developing and maintaining an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources.
The Council’s People Strategy and Delivery Plan is in place. As with all the goals, there are commitments we are
all making to ensure we achieve them. Some of the commitments for engaging our people are:




facilitate meaningful ‘big conversations’ through our employee forum, which is open to all employees
establish a leadership forum, to bring together our people leaders on a regular basis
undertake regular, valuable, two-way engagement, through a range of internal communications
channel

Success - We’re already doing lots of things to engage with employees, and more is planned - the Employee
Forum has been going strong since November 2018, it’s a great way for us to gain your feedback and get
employees collaborating on different pieces of work

8

Principles
E.
Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the
capability of its
leadership and the
individuals within it

Page

Page 32

There is recognition that over a period, poor quality target setting may adversely affect the performance of
individuals and the organisation. There are feedback and complaints mechanisms/reports in place to allow quality
issues to be identified. The Council’s performance management is undergoing review and transformation. The
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules requires that when procuring a service due regard is paid as to how the
contract will improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of Dorset as required by the Public
Service (Social Value) Act 2012. Achievement of social value is monitored regularly.

Principles

Sub-principles

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
 we have started running our Leadership Forum, bringing together our people leaders to cover a range
of different topics
 the introduction of Hive as a staff survey tool- The first survey of Hive has been launched. You can find
out more about Hive here.
We recognise that the more employees can see on how their feedback is used positively, the more engaged
they will be – leading us to be more motivated and more productive.
The Council provides learning and development opportunities to elected councillors in accordance with its agreed
Member Learning and Development Strategy. Compulsory training is provided to relevant members on Planning
and Regulatory Matters and on Pensions. Regular briefings are provided to members on the key issues and
challenges facing the Council. Council Learning and Development plans are informed by the MTFS; Strategic
Vision; Departmental key aims; service plans.






Ensuring members and officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge and resources and support to fulfil
their roles and responsibilities and ensuring that they can update their knowledge on a continuing basis.
Ensuring that there are structures in place to encourage public participation. Taking steps to consider the
leadership's own effectiveness and ensuring leaders are responsive to constructive feedback from peer
review and inspections.
Ensuring arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support
individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing.
Members have received the same information about behavioural standards and the “One Team” initiative
as officers.
Mentoring is taking place within political groups and additional mentoring is available for councillors with
specific portfolios or roles.

9



Page

Page 33

Induction training is provided for all new employees appropriate to their role and responsibilities, with access to
on-going Learning and Development activities to enhance skills. The Council encourages and supports a diverse
workforce and variety of workplace support groups, such that it has been recognised as a sector leader by
Stonewall. The Council’s Equalities Board actively monitors and supports a diverse workforce and recruitment
processes have been strengthened to ensure fair representation of different groups. In addition, the Council goes
about:

Principles

Sub-principles

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
 We have a written Member and Officer protocol in the Constitution that sets out the formal basis of
member-officer relationships.
 Opportunities for all members (including non-executive) to inform/influence decision-making and policy
development - The constitution sets out the opportunities for Members to formally participate in the
democratic process.

We will clearly set out our objectives and what we’re trying to achieve.

2.

We will measure how effective our services are and take action to improve them. We will publish information
showing how we are progressing towards our objectives.

3.

We will work with other public services, such as the Police and NHS, to improve services for Dorset residents.

4.

We will ensure we make the best use of taxpayers’ money by taking prudent financial decisions and
measuring the level of value for money we achieve.

5.

We will set out in our Constitution who can take which decisions.

6.

We will behave in ways that reflect our values and high standards of conduct.

7.

We will ensure people in the Council making decisions have access to accurate information to help them
take decisions in the best interests of Dorset.

8.

We will record and publish the decisions we take and the reasons for them. Wherever possible, we’ll take
the most important decisions in public.

9.

We will carry out scrutiny of our services to make sure they meet our residents’ needs.

10. We will be sensitive about how we collect and record information and safeguard it from misuse.

Page

Page 34

1.

10

Our commitment to good governance will continue to demonstrate our Code of Corporate Governance that sets
out the standards that Dorset Council will meet to ensure it is doing the right things in the right way for the right
people in an inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner. As highlighted the Code of Corporate Governance
is a long and complex document but the commitments described in it can be broadly summarised by the ten
commitments to good governance set out below.

Managing performance
Robust internal control
Managing data
Strong public financial
management

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Dorset Council continues to develop its risk aware culture and seek to implement indicators that help to identify,
assess and report risks. Risks constantly change, so it is necessary to monitor and regularly report on the progress
being made in managing risks and opportunities in line with the council plan and directorate service objectives.
We recognise the importance that risk registers are kept up to date with accurate and robust analysis which
enables meaningful review and focus will be to:




Implement a robust and integrated risk management process
Monitor and review that the process works effectively
Responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated

Page 35

As Dorset Council is within its infancy, the risk register framework is still maturing. Risks have been identified at both
a corporate and service level and are reported on a quarterly basis to Audit and Governance Committee. A business
continuity framework has been developed, and a review undertaken during 2020 to ensure effective for critical
services. These have also been subject to an external challenge by risk consultants as part of a risk support facility
contained within the insurance contract. Several exercises were undertaken during 2019 to ensure that they are fit
for purpose. The Command and Control structure has been effective to-date throughout the Covid-19 response,
but the opportunity will be taken to debrief and understand lessons learnt, at both an authority and multi-agency
(Local Resilience Forum) perspective and to update emergency response plans accordingly.
A new set of performance scorecards have been developed which cascade down the organisation providing
relevant performance management information to different management levels in the structure. A new interim
scorecard solution has been designed and approved by the senior management team operating around 4
quadrants covering:
 Finance – a sustainable organisation (Core financial performance information)
 HR – an employer of choice (HR information)
 Operational – an effective modern organisation (Key operational performance metrics for each Council
service)
 Customer – a customer focused organisation (Key customer metrics)
The top-level Senior Leadership Team scorecard provides a council wide view of the key performance being driven
by the lower level directorate feeds. As such, the drillable SLT dashboard flags council wide exceptions for
performance tolerance, but then provides the ability to drill into which directorate(s) are contributing to the issue.
Adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment is tested throughout the year through
the approval and implementation of a risk based Internal Audit Annual Plan and by operational audits. The Council

11

Sub-principles
Managing risk

Page

Principles
F.
Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

participates in a range of external audits, inspections and accreditations to ensure it remains accountable for the
quality of services its delivers as well to support continuous improvement of services.
Mandatory training for managers has been implemented on data protection and information management. A
partnership information sharing protocol, and information sharing agreements are put in place where required.
Policies that govern the use of data, and corporate data standards are in place. That encouraging effective and
constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives to support balanced and effective decision making
that helps to
 Provide members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress
towards outcome achievement
 Ensuring there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation
reporting, for example, financial statements
 Aligning the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives
 That its recommendations are listened to and acted ensuring effective arrangements are in place for the
safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data

12
Page

Page 36

Financial procedures are documented in the Financial Regulations. Monthly budget monitoring reports on the
MTFS (capital and revenue) are provided to senior management and committees.

Principles
G.
Implementing good
practices in transparency,
reporting, and audit to
deliver effective
accountability

Sub-principles
Implementing good
practice in transparency
Implementing good
practices in reporting
Assurance and effective
accountability

Dorset Council’s commitment to achieving good governance in practice includes:
Implementing good practices in transparency and reporting; Assurance and effective accountability





Writing and communicating reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and
understandable style appropriate to the intended audience and ensuring that they are easy to access and
interrogate.
Striking a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands
and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide and for users to understand. Report
at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources to stakeholders
in a timely and understandable way.
Ensuring members and senior management own the results reported.

Ensuring the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and
timely basis and the statements allow for comparison with other similar organisations.

The Annual Financial Statements are compiled, published to timetable and included on the council’s website. The
Annual Government Statement (AGS) sets out the council’s governance framework and the results of the annual
review of the effectiveness of the council’s arrangements.

The Council engages in peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implementing
recommendations. A peer challenge was carried out during 2019 and an improvement action plan has been
developed.

13

There is compliance with CIPFA Statements on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer and the Role of the Head of
Audit. The Audit Service abides with the principles of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, but some
development is required before full conformance can be claimed. External Audit provides an annual opinion on
the Council’s financial statements and arrangements.

Page

Page 37

Agendas, reports and minutes are published on the council’s website. Committee reports, and debates are made
available online to the public. Regular press releases and briefings with good press coverage. Council newsletter
produced for all residents. During the Covid-19 response, essential Committee meetings have been maintained
and carried out virtually. These remain transparent and available for viewing by the public.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Audit and Governance Committee
May 2020
Risk Management Update
For Decision
Portfolio Holder:

Cllr S Flower, Leader of the Council

Executive Director:

Jonathan Mair, Corporate Director, Legal & Democratic

Name: Marc Eyre, Service Manager Assurance; Tel: 01305 224358
Email : m.eyre@dorset.council.gov.uk
Report Status: Public
Recommendation: That Audit and Governance Committee review the key risks identified
in the corporate and service risk registers.
Reason for Recommendation: To ensure that the Council’s risk management methodologies
remain current, proportionate and effective in enabling risk informed decisions to be made.
Dorset Council continues to work to better embed and help raise awareness of the principles
of risk management and to assist officers, at all levels, in applying sound risk management
principles and practices. In delivering our services for Dorset residents, officers and members
have established an agreed a set of strategic and operational objectives to provide the
Authority with direction.
1.

Executive Summary

The continual development and promotion of risk management will ensure that the Council
is well placed to demonstrate that objective and informed decisions are taken and that the
Council is ultimately in a strong position to successfully face and address the challenges
ahead. Strategic risk management is owned by the Senior Leadership Team, with an agreed
risk management policy statement setting out the Councils commitment. Corporate
Directors are accountable for the top-level strategic risks. These are informed by operational
service level risks owned by Heads of Service and Service Managers. This update is the first
version of the quarterly report to include details and a management response for service risks
identified as High (there are some gaps in this respect, as the reviews are ongoing). This
report is set out in Appendix A. The reporting processes used within this report have also
been adopted by the Council for its response to Covid-19.

Page 39

These service risk registers are still maturing, and the Risk and Resilience Officer will attend
relevant directorate management meetings to present and discuss the current risk situation
and hold open surgeries with the accountable officers to update their specific risks. There is
now a closer alignment between the risk management and internal audit processes, with the
corporate and service risks playing a key role in informing the annual audit plan. As the risk
management process matures, owners of service risks will make a judgement on the
effectiveness of internal controls, with SWAP providing challenge and support to improving
this control framework.
As already highlighted the overview of risk management rests with the Assurance function,
which is looking to embed a culture of organisational learning from risk events that occur. It
is hoped that with the update presented today that the members are given the necessary
assurance that work to date surrounding risk management is taking shape and moving in the
right direction. The new Risk and Resilience Officer will look to provide the necessary support
to drive forward a proactive risk management approach, in conjunction with Accountable
Officers and Risk Owners. Clear identification and assessment of risks will ultimately lead to
a more effective use of resources and result in direct improvements to the services we can
provide to our customers and stakeholders. Risk management is about taking informed
decisions, achieving objectives and delivering results.
2.

Financial Implications

No budget implications specifically, although unmanaged risks may pose a threat to the
Council’s financial stability. Identified risk improvement measures may also have direct
budget implications, each of which need to be subject to a cost/benefit analysis prior to
implementation.
3.

Climate implications

“Failure to protect our environment and adapt services and communities to the impacts of a

changing climate” is identified as one of the 20 corporate risk themes.
4.

Other Implications

None
5.

Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision using the Council’s approved risk
management methodology, the level of risk has been identified as:
Current Risk: HIGH
Residual Risk: HIGH

Page 40

The risk level is identified as High as Appendix A provides an update on those High-level risks
which are currently identified within the Corporate Risk Register
6.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Considering equalities issues is a key aspect of good governance, but there are no equalities
issues arising directly from this report.
7.

Appendices

Appendix A – Summary of Dorset Council corporate and service risks, including the scoring
matrix
8.

Background Papers

None

Page 41

Page 42

APPENDIX A

RISK MANAGEMENT: Corporate and Service Risk Register Update May 2020

Link to Corporate Risk Register on SharePoint

Likelihood
Impact

Page 43

Service Risk Profile

H
M
L

L
55
47
26

M
27
51
11

H
12
8
1

CRR01 - Failure to adequately manage the financial position leads to an overspend which is untenable in the medium term

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
4
4
5

M
4
10

H
5
2
1

High Risk: 125) Gap exists between amount of available resource and demand for statutory responsibilities (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Adults)
Response: We are improving performance and financial management information using scorecards, enhanced reporting and more detailed financial data and analysis. This draws upon the
intelligence and analysis from the monthly locality-based budget and performance meetings. A continuous drive by DLT to identify options for improving outcomes and seeking additional
efficiencies and savings.
We are working with Impower to embed new ways of working – pilots happening in Ferndown re first point of contact and Adult Access Team and Bridport working with Social Workers
embedding the Strengths Based Approach. We have new assistive technology initiative working partners, Argenti. This involves working at the front door as well as reviewing existing care and
support arrangements for individuals. Conducting investigative work to get ahead of the game with Children’s colleagues around the needs of young people and preparing them for adulthood.
Both around practice and our commissioning offer. We have initiated a monthly Debt Management Group looking at the end-to-end process of income collection and debt control.

Page 44

Standardised the vacancy factor to 2% releasing £130k. More rigorous approach to managing the staffing establishment including improved recruitment processes with less reliance on agency
staff and tighter control of vacancies.
High Risk: 4) Lack of joined up strategic decision making at an early stage results in increased costs for young people in transition (Risk Owner: Head of Locality Services)

Response: An Executive Advisory Panel has been convened to set the direction for Transitions with colleagues across the People directorates (for adults and children’s). The first meeting, an
initial scoping workshop, is planned for 2 April 2020. A desktop exercise has taken place to draw together information, insight and data for mental health, learning disability and adults to
inform the Executive Advisory Panel and identify some business as usual actions for improvement. The ownership of the Transitions budget has been transferred to Specialist Manager for
Learning Disability and processes are being put into place to apply increased scrutiny and consistency around budget commitments and spend.

High Risk: 104) A lack of sufficiency and resilience (placements/residential/foster care) impacts negatively on the demands led budget for children in care (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for
Care and Protection
Response: Ensuring enough local placements for our children in care, closer to their families and communities, is a priority within our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Plan. We
are undertaking focused work during Spring and Summer 2020 to further enhance our campaigns to promote Foster Care in Dorset, this has included social media and radio campaigns. We
have an active group of Foster Carers who are continually helping us to shape our services and support. We are also continuing to deliver our Looked After Children Reduction Strategy agreed
by Cabinet in July. This strategy explicitly states our commitment to reducing the number of children in our care. Further information on this strategy can be found here .
High Risk: 203) Loss/severe reduction of key public transport route(s) - e.g. no longer commercially viable, change to bus operator strategic direction (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Travel
Operations)
Response: Providing revenue support to a public route beyond our current position would have significant financial implications – not just for one route, but for others in the network. This
would need careful consideration and support from Cabinet

High Risk: 154) Failure to achieve capital and revenue budget / savings targets for the MTFP (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Continue to promote educational campaigns, such as, 'Right Stuff, Right Bin' to maintain and increase material capture rates for recycling and composting. Use the new in-cab
BARTEC system to help further drive efficiencies from the existing Recycle for Dorset Service. Maintain project register and continue to work on savings projects, such as changing collection
points, working patterns and infrastructure (invest to save).
Move ahead with the development of a central strategic waste transfer station to avoid an uncompetitive situation for disposal/treatment prices in Dorset. This will also build in contingency for
waste services as our landfill sites close and our disposal options become increasingly limited. Ensure greater transfer capacity is at the heart of infrastructure programme. Work to reduce
waste arisings and residual waste through educational campaigns (Right Stuff, Right Bin). Work with contractors to ensure contingency plans in place for Brexit.
High Risk: 156) Smaller geographical area, smaller tonnage and less competitive in waste market (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Ensure greater transfer capacity is at the heart of our infrastructure programme, to allow for waste to be transferred further to generate greater competition. Waste disposal
contract end dates aligned with neighbouring BCP Council to allow for future opportunities for joint procuring waste disposal and treatment solutions with larger tonnages to attract more
competitive rates. Continued engagement with the market to better understand what Dorset needs to do to create competition and achieve competitive disposal and treatment rates.
High Risk: 209) Change of government policy through the new DEFRA national waste strategy could impact what, and how, waste is collected and increasing costs (Risk Owner: Head of
Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Need to respond to further consultations when they are published in 2020. These documents will give more details of minimum collection standards which will be enforced
nationally.

Page 45

High Risk: 210) Commodity prices for recyclize leads to increase in costs (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Ensure continued investment in communication and educational resources.
High Risk: 211) Failure to maintain high recycling and waste therefore diverted to more expensive disposal (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Ensure continued investment in communication and educational resources.
High Risk: 281) Financial viability of nursery and after school provision (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)
Response: The position of schools and early years settings is such that full DFE grant income continues to be made available irrespective of opening status. There are some pressures on school
budgets that are covered by exceptional DFE grants. Early years settings are commercial settings and have in some cases responded by closure and furlough. Other settings are working closely
with the Council to ensure they remain viable.
Children’s Services Leadership are undertaking a review of nursery and afterschool provision in order to understand the financial viability of providing nursery and afterschool provision as a
fully traded service. Managers of these services have undertaken a review of income and expenditure and have put an income recovery plan in place. This will be subject to scrutiny by the
management team.

CRR02 - Loss of ICT service or data through a cyber-attack
Likelihood
Impact

L
H
M
L

M
1

H

High Risk: Loss of ICT service or data through a cyber-attack (Risk Owner: Head of ICT Operations)
Response: Countermeasures for this risk can be split into 2 categories, Likelihood reduction and Impact reduction.

Page 46

Likelihood reduction: The most likely risk trigger is a successful phishing attempt that yields user credentials or allows malware to be installed on a device. Current industry data suggests that
successful phishing campaigns account for up to 80% of all cyber breaches. LGA grant funding has been secured to provide user awareness training and phishing simulation capabilities for one
year. A product has been selected and implementation of this product is expected by June 2020. Phishing simulation will allow the authority to assess the effectiveness of this training providing
further assurance to the organisation. The ICT Operations team are working up proposals for how this can be sustained to ensure user awareness and phishing simulation capabilities are
maintained. There has been a focus on identity management and protection in the last 3 months, a new password policy has been agreed and is being implemented along with mandatory
multifactor authentication and conditional access technologies.
Impact Reduction: The Council’s overall approach to cyber security management has been under review since the end of Corporate Development Tranche 2 restructuring which confirmed the
Cyber Security & ICT Continuity Lead appointment. A new strategy and policy are being drafted. These documents will outline the approach for the Council over the next few years and lay the
foundation for comprehensive, interlocking countermeasures for this risk. The planned changes will allow the organisation to reduce its attack surface (likelihood) and to react quickly to a
breach which can drastically reduce the overall impact of the incident.

CRR03 - Failure to recruit, develop and retain the required workforce skills leads to an inability to deliver the Council's vision
Likelihood
Impact

L
H
M
L

2
2

M
2
1

H
1

High Risks: 119) The period of uncertainty and transition results in difficulties retaining and motivating staff (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for HR and OD)
Response: Some employees may choose to leave during period of major change causing further demand on remaining employees. Uncertainty of the future may impact upon motivation and
affect performance. Mitigation - Ongoing Communications and Engagement with all employees (Newsletters, Intranet, etc). Employee Forums established; Wellbeing and L&D support in place.
High Risk:112) Inability to attract and retain suitably qualified specialist safeguarding staff within Children’s Services (Corporate Director for Care & Protection)
Response: We are progressing our recruitment and retention strategy and actively promoting Dorset Council Children’s Services as an employer of choice. This has included: updating our
recruitment webpages, increased promotion nationally through leading sector professional publication, writing to staff working with us through agencies to encourage their applications to
permanent posts, pursuing overseas recruitment.

Our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme includes significant work to expand our learning and development and support offer alongside manageable caseloads, regular
and reflective supervision and integrated teams all of which are known to be important factors influencing social workers to apply for roles.

High Risk: 202) Loss of professional engineering staff who provide advice could lead to poor decision making and potentially leave the Council liable for insurance claims if assets are not
maintained or the appropriate response to emergency situations given (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Engineering Survives)
Response: There are many long serving staff currently retained within DC who enjoy the work and are committed to providing a service. Recruitment methods ensure that appropriate
candidates are recruited – although there is a national shortage of qualified Chartered Engineers. Further actions - Increase resilience by formation of coastal partnership with BCP Council to
share and grow staff resources with ability to source greater grant income. DC recognise importance of professional qualifications and need for staff to be members of appropriate institutions –
pay for relevant subscription fees, allow qualifications on email signatures etc

CRR04 - Failure to safeguard personal information or the misuse of information leads to a breach of the General Data Protection Regulations

Impact

Likelihood

Page 47

H
M
L

L
1
1

M
1

H

High Risks: 212) Inadequate information governance culture and framework and culture (policy; training; monitoring etc) results in a significant data breach (Risk Owner: Service Manager for
Assurance)
Response: The Shaping Dorset Council programme included a workstream on information governance to ensure that key policies and processes were harmonised, which has transformed into
an Information Governance Board since 1 January 2020, chaired by the Senior Information Risk Officer. A corporate Information Governance team was established for Tranche 2 and work is
underway to develop an improvement action plan.

CRR05- Failure to respond to a major event (internal or external) that could impact on the community, the environment and/or the delivery of critical Council
services

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
5
3
3

M
1
3

H

High Risks: 102) Failure to respond to a major event or civil emergency that impacts on the community, the environment and/or the Council (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Assurance)
Response: The Dorset Council Emergency Response Plan and supporting Command and Control structure was approved for Day One of Dorset Council; There is ongoing work by Local
Resilience Forum workstreams and task & finish group leads on specific multi agency projects.
There has been a thorough training programme for the Command and Control Structure, including running several pandemic flu and BREXIT focussed exercises during 2019.
The full Command and Control structure at authority and LRF level has been in operation throughout the Covid-19 outbreak. The risk profile for COVID-19 shows that whilst a majority of risks
are in the ‘high’ category, posing the most amount of risk to the Council, the likelihood of these happening are ‘possible’, which could suggest that there are mitigations in place to prevent

these risks from occurring. Overall, however the Council is currently facing a high-risk situation during a major incident with many factors unpredictable including the central government
response during the outbreak. The risk management strategy at this time is for continued, focussed oversight of known risk and management of capacity to respond to priority situations as
they evolve.

CRR06- A failure to understand and manage EU exit implications on the Council results in a breach of statutory duty or service failure

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
22
12
2

M

H

11
2

High Risks: None
Response:

Page 48

Impact

CRR07- Failure to provide adequate provision of infrastructure leads to inability to deliver the Council's vision
Likelihood

H
M
L

L
3
6
1

M
1
2
3

H
3
1

High Risks: 73) Failure to attract funding for assets that we cannot afford to maintain in future (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Infrastructure & Assets)
Response: The HAMP will help us to understand whole life cost better. Inspection regimes for cycleway schemes are needed where we are legally responsible for their upkeep. We are not
going to be allowed to charge commuted sums for SUDs adoption. Further actions:
* Development of the HAMP;
* Changes to processes so future maintenance funding is considered when bidding for funds;
* DfT funding bids must be made to ensure ongoing maintenance of adopted infrastructure including footways and cycleways;
* Cycleway assets - digitised in a way that allows defects to be assigned in confirm;
* Avoid over specifying schemes;
* Develop hierarchy and inspection regime for cycle ways;
* Design schemes in the most suitable/low maintenance way;
* More robust contractual agreements where we are funding assets/equipment used by 3rd parties (i.e. so they cannot be moved out of the county, etc);
High Risk: 84) Failure to deliver a safe and suitable alternative to the current arrangements for Wareham Level Crossing (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Infrastructure & Assets)
Response: Dorset Council assumed responsibility from Dorset County Council to manage the pedestrian level crossing in Wareham. The lease agreement between Network Rail and Dorset
Council for the level crossing runs until 2038; this crossing will close in 2038 as per the terms of the lease. If no suitable alternative is delivered before 2038 Dorset Council would be found to be
breaching Equalities legislation.

In 2008/9 The Office for Road and Rail (ORR) raised safety concerns with the pedestrian level crossing in Wareham. The ORR stated that mitigating measures had to be put in place or they
would force the closure of the crossing. As a result, Dorset County Council paid for the provision of security guards at the crossing to improve compliance and safety at the crossing. In more
recent years, following an additional review by the ORR the crossing has been managed with electronic gates closed by security guards when a train is approaching. The crossing is currently
managed between 6am and 1am (19hours) seven days a week. The provision of security staff is provided by third party contractors STM Security Ltd. The crossing is locked closed between
1am and 6am each day. Dorset Council has assumed responsibility previously held by Dorset County Council.
Network Rail and the Council have tried twice before to resolve this by proposing ramped bridges adjacent to the existing footbridge but failed to obtain planning permission from the then
Purbeck District Council owing to local objections.
The crossing continues to be a continuing financial commitment with ongoing reputational concerns as there is no suitable alternative means for all to cross the rail lines if the crossing is closed
– there is a stepped footbridge adjacent to the crossing. Footway/cycleway alternatives are being explored in the area, but these are not currently seen to closing the level crossing.
There remains commitment from Dorset Council and Network Rail to finding a resolution. Commitment from central government appears secure too following a visit by the Minister for Rail to
the site and meeting with key stakeholders on 23 January 2020. The Minister for Rail stated that he was committed to finding a solution and that safety and accessibility were of paramount
importance which would likely mean that a degree of compromise is required when considering suitable alternatives. Network Rail have agreed to explore and exhaust all possible
technological options for providing an automated level crossing, however, it is more likely that an alternative step free route over the rail lines will be the most viable solution. No definitive
plans are proposed for a suitable alternative at time of writing (February 2020).

Page 49

CRR07- Failure to provide adequate provision of infrastructure leads to inability to deliver the Council's vision (Cont’d)

High Risk: 63) Inability to maintain the highways infrastructure to an acceptable standard in the face of changing circumstances (e.g. budget reductions; climate change) (Risk Owner: Head of
Highways)
Response: Service levels have reduced due to reductions in highways revenue funding which severely impacted on drainage maintenance and pothole repairs.
We have assessed ourselves as Band 3 status for 2020/21, therefore secured the full allocation from the Department for Transport`s Incentive Fund (£2.2million). But under investment in
revenue maintenance funding has contributed to a reduction in scores for some questions, to Band 2, specifically relating to drainage and pothole repairs. To have dropped into Band 2 overall,
would have resulted in a loss of £1.5million.
The Highways EAP have made recommendations to Cabinet to reinstate essential maintenance funding. Further submissions for central government funding will be made as and when the
opportunities arise. Further actions:

Highway maintenance revenue budget report

Annual business cases for capital investment in highway maintenance;

Develop a risk-based approach to cyclic drainage maintenance

Further bids for extra funds from central government, and other sources, where appropriate;
Deliver Action Plan to achieve full available funding from DfT incentivised funding
High Risk: 204) Dorset Travel fails to procure and implement a suitable replacement for its core transport management system by Nov 2020 (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Travel
Operations)
Response: Procuring a more effective replacement for is key to any service efficiencies, savings and improvements in future. We have no further options for extending the current contract.

High Risk: 208) Gaining sites and planning to provide infrastructure leads to failure to deliver service (Risk Owner: Head of Commercial Waste & Strategy)
Response: Strategic case business planning being developed for infrastructure

CRR08- Failure to provide a good education to young people in Dorset
Likelihood
Impact

L

M

H

H
M
L

High Risks: None
Response:

Page 50

Impact

CRR09- A failure to manage the service transformation process results in poor service outcomes and negative staff morale
Likelihood

H
M
L

L
1

M
1

H

1

High Risks: 231) Securing enough and appropriate skills and resources through restructuring of service to deliver DC economic growth strategy (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Growth &
Economic Regeneration)
Response: Informed restructuring process

CRR10- Failure to manage the extent of staff changes and structural change results in a significant loss of corporate knowledge

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L

M

1

1

High Risks: None
Response:

H

CRR11 - Failure to protect our environment and adapt services and communities to the impacts of a changing climate

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
1
1

M
1

H
1

High Risks: 201) Climate change effects on sea level rise and uncertainty could lead to low lying areas such as Weymouth being uneconomic to defend (Risk Owner: Service Manager for
Engineering & Special Projects)
Response: Latest inter-governmental guidance is used when designing coast defences, design life of 50 years. Shoreline Management plan review – agree to use managed realignment of
coastline in areas. May have to design coastal defences for 100 years life and accept increased costs of doing so. May have to relocate coastal communities. Work with, not against, nature.
Further bids to Defra and others to increase funding above EA thresholds for erosion management and flood defence works. EA grant calculator update expected spring 2020, potential for
increased funding to protect infrastructure and economic activity. Funding currently mainly based on numbers of homes protected”
High Risk: 140) Failure to adapt services and communities to the impacts of a changing climate
Response: To follow

CRR12 - Failure of process, policy or procedure leads to a breach of statutory duty, litigation or cessation of critical service

Impact

Page 51

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
6
5
2

M
1
3

H
1
1

High Risks: 247) Temporary Accommodation is insufficient to meet community need (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Housing Solutions)
Response: It is planned to appoint additional resource to the accommodation team so that additional suitable temporary accommodation can be sourced from the private sector. Numbers of
households in B&B accommodation is at an all-time high and increasing with many exceeding the 6-week statutory time limit. There is an increase in demand for temporary accommodation
from people who are homeless and from our rough sleeping community along with the reduction in social rented accommodation available all attributable to the to the Covid-19 crisis. The
Accommodation Finder is an officer on the team who sources new properties for leasing. She has been successful in resourcing new properties which will help reduce the number in B&B but as
a part-time role additional capacity is needed in the team.

High Risk: 194) Lack of five-year housing land supply, or failure to meet Housing Delivery Test, means that policies are considered out of date and there is risk of having to allow more
applications and of losing planning appeals (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Spatial Planning)
Response: Further actions - Ensure that new local plan allocates a good supply of sites against the targets, that there is a variety of sites and that they have a good chance of delivery.
Ensure local plan is progressed at intended speed. Ensure that the issue is clearly explained to planning committee members and that we allow applications where appropriate, where we do
not have the five-year supply.

High Risk: 62) Traffic Commissioner Revoking, Curtailing, Suspending or Restricting DCC's Operators Licence (Goods and/or Passenger Carrying Operators Licence) (Risk Owner: Head of Waste &
Operations)
Response: Whilst the Council's Risk Compliance Score remains Green, a targeted inspection from the Traffic Commissioners has highlighted several improvements required. This has prompted
an audit of our fleet operations (undertaken by the Freight Transport Association) and a resulting action plan which has been submitted to the Traffic Commissioner. A failure to demonstrate
improvement risks the O Licence being revoked, curtailed, suspend or restricted, which would impact significantly on our ability to deliver critical services as well as severe reputational
damage. The Executive Director for Place is receiving monthly compliance reports.
Further actions -Action plan has been submitted and accepted by the Office of the Traffic Commissioner for the Goods licence. The Office of the traffic Commissioner has granted a period of 3
months grace on the PSV licence for a named transport manager to be added to the licence. “

CRR13 - Failure to protect the health, safety and wellbeing of staff, contractors or the public leads to significant financial and/or reputational damage

Impact

Likelihood

Page 52

H
M
L

L
4
2

M
1
7
1

H
1

High Risks: 138) Breach of health and safety at an occupied premise (Directorate Duty Holder) (Risk Owner: Head of Assets & Property)

Response: Many sites now have a nominated Premises Responsible Person. However, restructuring of services and adoption of Corporate Landlord model has reduced local understanding of
the Directorate Duty Holder Strategy. The strategy is ratified and DDH nominees have been identified. Grenfell Tower fire has implicated the need for a review of fire safety and specific review
of individual property risks.
Comply with DCLG/DFES requests for information/ complete our own fire risk reviews additionally and implement actions arising.
High Risk: 83) PUWER Regulations - non-compliance of PUWER Regulations (H&S Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations 1998) (Risk Owner: Head of Waste & Operations)

Response: There is a clear visual view to identify if individual plant items comply with the control measures. Each depot has a tagging colour scheme poster available to all operators. The
system is simple and effective. Fleet will continue to monitor and audit the process to ensure compliance is consistent and maintained, with support from H&S;
* Countryside service is to start the first round of PUWER checks in February using the new process;
* Highways have completed the first round of 6 monthly checks in October and no items are outstanding;
* Highways compliance is excellent and is totally compliant. Countryside are struggling currently, but Fleet are aware of additional resources to catch up with the situation. Admin resources
have been trained to implement the documents that are currently sat on desks. Fleet wave is showing 299 records from the Countryside service awaiting completed PUWER inspection sheets.
Emails sent out explaining the current risk to the authority;
* Countryside and grounds are increasing the number of staff to carry out PUWER checks. Fleet Service to instruct on the practical checks and supply training on the Fleet Wave system to the
nominated staff;
* The risk has changed to red due to the current situation. Audit of the system has resulted in 381 items of Countryside plant waiting for a PUWER sheet and the Fleet wave system to be
updated. 80 items for Highways also in the same situation. The system was 95% compliant, but due to the current situation this has greatly reduced to 55% compliant. Update - the outstanding
PUWER inspections have been completed from the previous scheduled programme. The next programmed 6-monthly PUWER inspections is currently in operation and will report on
outstanding items not actioned next month.

CRR14 - A safeguarding failure results in the harm or neglect of a vulnerable person

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
2

M
3
1

H

High Risks: 151) Major safeguarding incident (including death or serious injury) arises on adult transport due to lack of supervision (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Transport Operations)
Response: Passenger Assistants (PAs) on all or selected adult social care transport. Address this matter in future commissioning strategy for adults
High Risk: 106) Failure to understand and respond to the changing nature of exploitation results in a safeguarding failure (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)
Response: Our new Pan-Dorset Safeguarding Partnership arrangements are now in place including the appointment of a highly regarded and experienced national sector leader as
Independent Scrutineer. We, along with partners across Dorset County have published our new Child Exploitation Strategy 2020-2022 setting out how together we will ensure an effective
and coordinated response to children and young people at risk of, or linked to exploitation, identifying potential risk early to reduce risk and harm.
High Risk: 105) Failure to keep children safe that are known to, or in the care of, Dorset Council (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)

Page 53

Response: We are undertaking work to further strengthen practice and services through our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme.

Impact

CRR15 - Failure to effectively commission services results in poor value for money, service failure or legal challenge
Likelihood

L
H
M
L

M
3

H

2

High Risks: 5) Failure to manage and shape the provider market and associated increases in service costs and poor service (Risk Owner: Head of Commissioning)
Response: Risk review to be undertaken by Risk and Resilience Officer
High Risks: Insufficient controls in place to ensure that operational employees use framework agreements effectively when sourcing education and support for child (Risk Owner: Corporate
Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)
Response: As part of the new model for children’s services, sourcing of education and support will be undertaken by a single team and under a single management structure. This will ensure
that operational colleagues use their skills to assess and identify need and provide direct support to children and families. Brokerage officers will use a range of compliant procurement
mechanisms (including framework agreements) to secure value for money for the council. The leadership team will continue to review and monitor external spend to provide assurance of
compliance.

High Risks: 277) Insufficient availability of local placements and supported accommodation to meet local needs (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Commissioning & Partnerships)
Response: Ensuring sufficient local placements for our children in care closer to their families and communities and ensuring sufficient accommodation options for young people leaving care
and other vulnerable young people is a priority within our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Plan.
We have developed and published the Dorset Young People’s Protocol between Housing and Children’s Services, this is a joint protocol that describes how Housing and Children’s Services will
work together jointly to address the needs of 16 and 17 year olds.

CRR16 - Failure to maintain an effective political and managerial interface leads to a breakdown in effectiveness
Likelihood
Impact

L
H
M
L

M

H

1
1

High Risks: None

Page 54

Response:

CRR17 - Major service failure associated with transport provision for schools

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

High Risks: None
Response:

L
1

M

H

CRR18 - Failure to use enough and meaningful evidence leads to incorrect decisions

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
3
1

M
1
1
1

H

High Risks: 107) Inadequate evidence base (including Partnership data) to determine service need for children’s care and protection (Risk Owner: Corporate Director for Care & Protection)
Response: We are undertaking significant work to further strengthen practice and services through our Strengthening Services for Children and Families Programme. The developments in
Business Intelligence are supporting us to understand and model service need, and we will continue to develop this approach.

CRR19 - Failure to sustain an effective relationship with key partners results in a service delivery failure

Page 55

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L

M

1
2

5

H

High Risks: None
Response:

CRR20 - Failure to successfully deliver an election impacts on the Council’s reputation and incurs costs

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
1

High Risks: None
Response:

M

H

Other Risks (Not Linked to a Corporate Risk)

Impact

Likelihood

H
M
L

L
4
5
9

M
2
7
2

H
3

High Risks: 141) Changes to national planning policy lead to delays to prep of the Local Plan Review (Risk Owner: Head of Planning)
Response: Risk review to be undertaken by Risk and Resilience Officer
High Risk: 206) Changes to legislation around community transport groups operating under Section 19 and Section 22 licences could significantly affect the viability of community transport in
future (Risk Owner: Head of Dorset Travel)
Response: Difficult to define clearly now until the results and timeframes from the judicial review are made public
High Risk: 228) Changing funding landscape and ability to secure investment funding for Dorset (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Growth & Economic Regeneration)

Page 56

Response: Further actions - Collation and evaluation of evidence and preparation of schemes and business cases
High Risk: 205) Unviability of school bus services caused by failure to cut back overhanging trees and vegetation along routes (Risk Owner: Head of Dorset Travel)
Response: Facilitate communication and cooperation between the provider and DC's Highways and Arboriculture teams

High Risk: 190) Significant Health and Safety incident / accident investigation and subsequent prosecution taking significant officer time away from normal duties resulting in lack of resource
and risk to public health along with significant legal costs for the council (Risk Owner: Service Manager for Food, Safety & Port Health)
Response: As required staff who are managing a significant case will have other statutory duties passed to other team members. Prioritisation of work to concentrate on high risk premises.
Further Action - Ensure that staffing numbers and capacity is enough to carry out significant investigation work without significant impact on other statutory work.
Consideration of cross departmental work with Trading Standards on proceeds of crime action and resource allocation to support legal work.

